
 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 28, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

.. 
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA

October 28, 2015 
Closed Session 6:15 PM  ∙  Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 

 

1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
1A.  Call to Order 
1B.  Roll Call 
1C.  Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D.  Closed Session Agenda 

 

Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8. 
Property: APN 101‐132‐018 – Winner Chevrolet 
 

2) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
2A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
2B.  Report from Closed Session 
2C.  Roll Call 
2D.  Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

3) PRESENTATIONS________________________________________________________ 
3A.  Council Certificate of Appreciation to Gunda Pramuk, Colfax Library Branch Manager 
  Mayor Douglass  
3B.  Presentation of Recent Air Quality Trends in Colfax 
  Councilmember Tony Hesch, Member of Placer County Air Pollution Control District 
   

4) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
All matters  listed  under  the  Consent Agenda  are  considered  routine  in  nature  and will  be  approved  by  one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
4A.   Minutes City Council Meeting of October 14, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 14, 2015. 
4B.  Cash Summary Report September 2015 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File 
4C.  Appoint  Will  Stockwin  to  the  Placer  Sierra  Fire  Safe  Council  and  the  Weimar‐Applegate‐Colfax 

Municipal Advisory Committee (WACMAC) 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Councilmember Stockwin to represent the City of Colfax on the Placer 

Sierra Fire Safe Council and WACMAC. 
4D.  Quarterly Investment Report 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File 
 
 



 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 28, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 

5) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of  these  reports  is  to provide  information  to  the Council and public on projects, programs, and 
issues  discussed  at  committee meetings  and  other  items  of  Colfax  related  information. No  decisions will  be 
made on these  issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or 
other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 
5A.  Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ‐ All Councilmembers 
5B.  City Operations Update – City staff 
5C.  Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 

6) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the 
subject jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as 
possible. Comments should not exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included 
on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

7) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
7A.  Request for approval of two Welcome to Colfax signs. 
  STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve design, purchase and installation of Welcome to Colfax signs 
for the two major entrances to town. 

7B.  Update from Circulation Element/General Plan Committee  
PROGRESS REPORT FROM OCTOBER 16 MEETING: Councilmembers Steve Harvey, Tony Hesch 
RECOMMENDATION: Verbal Report for Information Only 

 

8) ADJOURNMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited  to  raising only  those  issues  you or  someone  else  raised  at  a public hearing described  in  this notice/agenda, or  in written  correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



Recent
Air Quality 
Trends
in Colfax

PRESENTATION BY
COUNCILMEMBER TONY HESCH

ITEM 3B



Days over the State 1‐ hour Ozone Standard (0.09 ppm)

ITEM 3B
2 of 8



Days over the State 8‐ hour Ozone Standard (0.070 ppm)

ITEM 3B
3 of 8



Expected Peak Day Concentration (EPDC) Ozone Trend
Auburn Monitoring Site

ITEM 3B
4 of 8



Expected Peak Day Concentration (EPDC) Ozone Trend
Colfax Monitoring Site

ITEM 3B
5 of 8



ITEM 3B
6 of 8



Placer County ROG Emission Inventory Trends

ITEM 3B
7 of 8



Placer County NOx Emission Inventory Trends

ITEM 3B
8 of 8



City of Colfax 1 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

City of Colfax 

City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL CLOSED SESSION TO ORDER 
 

1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Douglas called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. 

1B. Roll Call 

 Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch and Parnham 

1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 

 No public comment. 

1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957.6 Employee Organization: General Employees and Bargaining Unit 

Represented by Stationary Engineers, Local 39 City's Designated Representative:  

Mark Miller 

Council convened to Close Session. 

 

2 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 

The Regular Council Meeting, Open Session, was called to order at 7:02 PM by Mayor 

Douglass  

2A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Tim Ryan, 300 S. Main St. 

2B. Mayor Douglass stated that the closed session covered contract negotiations and 

there was no reportable action taken. 

2C. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch and Parnham 

2D. Approval of Agenda: 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council approved the agenda. 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 

NOES:   None 

 

3 COUNCILMEMBER APPOINTMENT 

 

3A. Discussion and Consideration of Applicants to Fill a Vacancy on the City 

Council for the Remainder of the Term 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Review applicants and select a new Councilmember 

by Resolution. 

Mayor Douglass asked the applicants if any would like to add information to their 

application. 

Applicant Marnie Mendoza, 140 Depot St, introduced herself to Council.  She has been 

involved in numerous volunteer capacities and desires to be a part of Colfax. 

ITEM 4A
1 of 8



City of Colfax 2 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

Councilmember Harvey questioned why the candidates should be treated differently now. 

He stated that in 2012 a Council vacancy was filled by appointment. At that time, 

Council purposely chose not to appoint him to fill the vacancy even though he had been a 

Candidate from the 2012 election receiving only one less vote than his opponent.  He 

feels that this Council should be consistent and not use the 2014 election results as 

criteria for selecting a Councilmember to fill this vacancy.  

Will Stockwin, 525 Pine Street and co-owner of the Downtown Farm, stated that his 

application should be considered as a candidate in recent election because his campaign 

had not involved any negativity towards other candidates. He can work with all of the 

sitting Councilmembers.  In the 2014 election, he came in fourth behind Councilmember 

Hesch.  Mr. Stockwin highlighted some of the points in his application and added his 

desire to see more activity downtown, promotion of Colfax as an outdoor recreation hub 

and the opening of a railroad museum.  He would like to explore creative uses for the old 

city dump site, perhaps as a concert venue; and he would like to start a push for eco-

tourism with a monarch butterfly/milkweed project.  He is a proponent of open 

government and has been pleased with the great progress that this Council has made 

toward this end. 

There were no comments from the public. 

Mayor Douglass thanked all of the applicants and the public for turning out to show their 

concern for Colfax. 

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch who stated he wanted to honor the will of 

the Citizens in the last election and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, the City 

Council approved Resolution 40-2015 Appointing William Stockwin to fill the 

vacancy on the City Council created by the resignation of Councilmember Ken 

Delfino. 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham 

NOES:   None 

ABSTAIN: Harvey 

City Clerk Cassidy gave the newly appointed Councilmember, Will Stockwin, the oath of 

office and he was seated with Council. 

 

4 PRESENTATION 

 

4A. Presentation of OUR Colfax (Organized Unified Response) Facebook Page, 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff’s Colfax Substation 

Commander  
Sergeant Conners explained that OUR Colfax is similar to a neighborhood watch.  The 

key component will be a Facebook page that is designed as a centralized means for City 

residents, community groups and City staff to communicate.  It will not be 100% 

monitored and will not serve for emergency communication.  It will be monitored by a 

team of representatives from community groups, the Sheriff’s Department, City Hall and 

the Chamber to ensure that the communication is appropriate and to respond as 

necessary.  It will also serve as a community bulletin board.  Sergeant Conners 

introduced the OUR Colfax logo which was created by Technical Services Manager 

Berry.  He thanked Jennifer Orozco for setting up the Facebook page. Jennifer stated that 

ITEM 4A
2 of 8



City of Colfax 3 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

the goal is to educate the citizens about the services available to them.  The webpage is 

set up and will launch next week, hopefully supported by an article in the Colfax Record. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that this is similar to a Placer County Sheriff’s page.  

Sergeant Conners confirmed that it will be similar but have more information and more 

ways to communicate. 

Councilmember Stockwin expressed concerns about security issues with using Facebook.   

Council and the public discussed that Facebook is a no cost option that allows Citizens to 

discuss issues openly.   

City Manager Miller stated that the City wishes to be sensitive to security concerns and 

may be able to integrate the new Work Order Software (Mobile 311) into the OUR 

Colfax Facebook page. 

There will be links to other agencies including the High School.  High School Principal 

Paul Lundberg expressed enthusiasm about the new program.   

Councilmember Harvey thanked Sgt. Conners and the committee for creating the 

program.  He feels it is a great step. 

City Manager Miller also thanked the OUR Colfax committee.  In 25 years of public 

service, he has never seen such a dedicated group of volunteers and law enforcement 

working so well together. 

 

5 CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

5A. Minutes City Council Meeting of September 23, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 

23, 2015. 

Councilmember Hesch pulled the Minutes from the Consent Calendar. He stated that his 

comments regarding the purchase of Mobile 311 Software should include his concern that 

the program would require more desk time and provide less time for the field. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council approved the Minutes as amended. 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 
 

6A. Committee Reports and Informational Items – All Council Members  

Councilmember Hesch 

 Attended the Dogs and Chats event and loved it. 

 As a member of the Placer County Air Quality Control board, he is helping with a 

nationwide search to replace the current director.   

 He would like to make an air quality presentation at the next Council meeting.  

 He suggested that the staff place a banner on the Caboose fence to announce 

Council meetings – perhaps on the Monday of each meeting.  City Manager Miller 

stated that he will be bringing a proposal before Council for a historically sensitive 

message board at the corner of Main Street and Grass Valley Street.  

Councilmember Hesch asked that Council be involved in the design. 

ITEM 4A
3 of 8



City of Colfax 4 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

 He stated that the microphones for Council Meetings need to be upgraded as many 

people complain that they cannot hear the broadcast Council meetings. 

 Requested that Staff place updating the Ordinance for filling Council vacancies on 

a future agenda.  City Attorney Cabral stated that this would be easy to do as it is 

literally changing 1 digit.  Any changes to an Ordinance require two meetings and 

30 days to go into effect. 

 He thanked the OUR Colfax group for their efforts. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 

 Supports the suggestion to update the ordinance for filling Council vacancies. 

 Attended the League of California Cities Conference; one of the highlights was a 

great presentation by the State Librarian. 

 Acknowledged the wonderful volunteers in Colfax. 

Councilmember Harvey 

 Reminded Council that the current sound system was obtained free from county 

surplus and suggested that staff look into the State Surplus program to upgrade the 

sound system. 

Mayor Douglass 

 Attended a Courage Worldwide fundraiser.  Although not directly related to 

Colfax the event was another good source of contacts for our city.  The theater will 

host a fundraiser for the organization soon. 

 He attended the California League of Cities Conference and reported that the 

seminar on partnering with local schools and intern programs offered helpful 

information. 

 Attended the high school parent meeting as a means of staying connected with the 

schools. 

 Attended the SEDCorp meeting. 

 He attended the football game honoring veterans and stated that it is important the 

community know that Council is involved in the community. 

 

6B. Operations Updates – City Staff 

City Manager Miller  

 Stated that the “Drug Take Back” program at City Hall last Saturday was very 

successful, with over 30 lbs. of prescription medications turned in and therefore 

not be available to get into the hands of children or the water supply. 

 The City is hosting an economic development workshop as a follow up to the 

successful meeting held in May.  Michele Reeves will be back to speak about how 

to bring people from the I-80 corridor into downtown and improving the link 

between the corridor businesses and the downtown businesses. 

 The owner of the historic hotel has started repair work but seems to have come to a 

halt – staff will follow up to strongly encourage him to keep with his schedule. 

 The Thrift Store will be moving into a larger downtown location. 

 Beach Hut Deli is making progress to have a December opening in the corridor. 

 

 

 

ITEM 4A
4 of 8



City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 

Paul Lundberg, Principal Colfax High School 

 He thanked Mayor Douglass for his support of the High School by coming to the 

“Honor” Football Game. 

 He thanked City Manager Miller for the invitation to the Economic Workshop. 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Colfax Station Commander 

 He gave recognition to the High School for their great programs supporting local 

heroes.  The OUR Colfax page will include a link to the High School website  

 Dogs and Chats was a success.  He thanked the Lions and Leo Club as well as the 

Chamber for sponsoring the food and water.  He is already making plans to make 

the next event even better. 

 The Drug Take Back program was a great success as well. 

 He recently attended a Rail Safety Workshop with Amtrak about how to respond to 

a rail emergency.  He will be working with the Amtrak Police Department to 

develop an emergency response plan. 

 The Department is participating in the Below 100 Program which is a nationwide 

effort to bring awareness to the public about the number of officers who are killed 

in action each year. 

 He is working on a presentation or workshop to present to Council about the life of 

a Law Enforcement Officer in Colfax.  

 Sgt. Conners stated that the Substation Volunteers are in the process of handing 

out business packets and obtaining contact information from all the businesses. 

Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 

 He requested that Council and the Chamber find a way to partner to thank and 

acknowledge the volunteer groups. 

 The next Chamber Mixer will be on Tuesday, October 20, at L’Orange Beauty.  It 

will be the last mixer for 2015. 

 

7  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Suzanne Roberts, Placer Hills Road 

 Stated that Councilmember Hesch’s comments regarding the selection of 

Councilmember Stockwin in order to honor election results was not relevant since 

the election was a year ago.  She hopes Councilmember Stockwin will be positive 

and not undermine Council. 

Linda Lou Haines, Local Resident 

 Commented that Sgt. Conners is a goldmine and cannot leave Colfax (general 

applause) 

 She announced a hearing regarding senior transit needs which will be held 

Wednesday, October 28, 2015 in Auburn at 9:15 AM.  She requested that anyone 

interested attend and make comments. 

 She stated support for the OUR Colfax website and hopes that it can be made 

secure. 

 

 

ITEM 4A
5 of 8



City of Colfax 6 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

Sharon Conners, Local Resident 

 Would like to see the City host an old-fashioned clean-up day where neighbors 

help neighbors with yard clean-up. 

Aimee Phebus, The Green Machine and Bull Dogs Parent Club 

 Invited everyone to the Elementary School Fall Festival which will be held 

October 23, 2015 downtown at Roy Toms Plaza. 

City Manager Miller mentioned that the High School track team will have a fundraiser 

“Zombie Run” on the evening of October 24, 2015. 

Ken Ahrens, 230 Scholtz 

 Mentioned that the grave of Bill Bean Jr had been vandalized and cautioned 

everyone to be alert and vigilant due to the increased crime in town. 

 He requested that the City fill more potholes. 

City Manager Miller stated that the new software program should help the City staff 

prioritize maintenance issues and potholes will be a priority. 

Sgt. Conners stated that the officers have some leads and are working to apprehend the 

perpetrator of the grave vandalism.  

 

8 PUBLIC HEARING 

 

8A. Public Hearing to Discuss and Consider Adopting Resolution No. 41-2015: A 

Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Colfax Accepting And 

Approving  the Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report And Making 

Findings Pursuant to Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 And The 

Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000 Et Seq). 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct Public Hearing, Review Annual Report, 

Consider Public and Staff Comments and Adopt Resolution No. 41-2015 

Mayor Douglass opened the Public Hearing at 8:32PM. 

City Manager Miller stated that this public hearing is a required component of the 

Mitigation Fee Program.  It is an accounting for the existing fee structure for the 

2014/2015 Fiscal Year. 

Councilmember Hesch asked if the funds could be moved between categories. 

City Attorney Cabral stated that the funds could move between projects but must stay 

within a category.  In other words, park moneys cannot be used for road improvements. 

Councilmember Hesch asked why Mitigation Fees was not part of the budget process. 

City Manager Miller stated that we have not had projects using these funds in some time, 

so mitigation fees are part of the process, but did not enter into the last budget. 

There was no public comment. 

The mayor closed the Public Hearing at 8:36PM 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council Adopted Resolution 41-2015 accepting and approving the Annual 

AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and Making Findings Pursuant to Colfax 

Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 And The Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code 

§66000 Et Seq). 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ITEM 4A
6 of 8



City of Colfax 7 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 

9A. Notice of Acceptance Grass Valley Street UPRR Ped Xing Project 

 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Adopt Resolution No. 42-2015 accepting the Grass 

Valley Street UPRR Ped Xing Project as complete and directing the City Clerk to 

file a Notice of Completion. 

City Manager Miller stated that the road improvement project was an extreme success 

meeting with good reports.  There were some change orders, which is typical of a project 

of this size.  The increases were higher than anticipated and staff is still waiting for the 

Union Pacific Railroad invoice. 

City Engineer, Alan Mitchell, stated that half way through the project, the construction 

crew discovered a grade discrepancy.  Because the project had been delayed by the 

Railroad for three weeks, Staff decided to quickly approve extra costs. 

Councilmember Hesch inquired why the project was one year late. 

City Engineer Mitchell stated that his firm had not anticipated that Caltrans would require 

Environmental pothole testing.  Testing of this type is sometimes required, but his firm 

chose not to expend funds for the testing until required. 

Councilmember Hesch requested that the City Engineer work with the City Manager to 

review the Change Order approval process so that Council can have input during project 

construction and not just after the fact. 

Councilmember Stockwin concurred that the Change Order process should be improved.  

He asked why the Bike Lane stops at the curve onto South Auburn Street. 

City Manager Miller stated that he had noticed this as well.  Staff will look at the width 

of the roadway and extend the bike lane if possible or at least stripe it in a way that will 

warn drivers and riders of a transition. 

Ken Ahrens, stated that before modifying the bike lane, staff should consider the fact that 

vehicles pulling trailers may need to use that space. 

On a motion by Councilmember Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by 

Councilmember Hesch, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 42-2015 

accepting the Grass Valley Street UPRR Ped Xing Project as complete and 

directing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion. 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

Councilmember Hesch gave his compliments to the prior Council for obtaining the 

funding to make this project possible. 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ITEM 4A
7 of 8



City of Colfax 8 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

9B. Update from Circulation Element/General Plan Committee 

Committee Councilmembers: Steve Harvey, Tony Hesch 

RECOMMENDATION: Verbal Report for Information Only 

City Manager Miller asked that the committee members report to Council and announced 

that the next meeting of the committee will be Friday October 16, 2015 at 10:00AM. 

Councilmembers Harvey and Hesch stated that there is nothing to report from the 

preliminary discussion and the committee would like to have the public participate and 

give input into the process.  This is an important topic and the public needs to come. 

City Manager Miller stated that as the process continues, it will be appropriate to have a 

public workshop explaining the decisions the committee is recommending for approval 

regarding traffic lights and round-abouts and other circulation element components. 

Councilmember Hesch moved and Councilmember Stockwin seconded 

adjournment of the City Council meeting.  

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:49PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28
th

 day of October, 2015. 

 

 

ITEM 4A
8 of 8



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE OCTOBER 28, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: October 21, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: September 2015 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: September 2015. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report: for September 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements.  Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and as part of the proposed budget process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in September 2015.   
 

Monthly highlights include: 

 General Fund Reserved Cash is tracking consistently with previous years and our General Fund 
Reserve balance has been met consistently for the past nine months. 

 September expenditures included: 
o Quarterly payment for Sheriff Services - $152,000 

o Annual loan payment to State Water Board - $438,000 

o Payments to Contractor and Consultants on UPPR Ped Xing project - $251,000 

 Negative fund balances in Restricted and Capital Funds are due to timing of funding allocations 
and reimbursements.  Both Fund 218 and Fund 250 typically are funded later in the fiscal year 
and full funding is anticipated.  Capital Fund 350 (UPPR Ped Xing Project) has anticipated 
reimbursement funding of $300,000, but also additional payments to Contractor and Union 
Pacific are still anticipated.

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 4B
1 of 11



ITEM 4B
2 of 11



ITEM 4B
3 of 11



ITEM 4B
4 of 11



ITEM 4B
5 of 11



ITEM 4B
6 of 11



ITEM 4B
7 of 11



ITEM 4B
8 of 11



ITEM 4B
9 of 11



ITEM 4B
10 of 11



ITEM 4B
11 of 11



2015 Committee Assignment List (Proposed 10-28-2015) 

 

Committee Councilmember 
Community Member 

Meeting Date and Time 
Mileage 

Reimbursement 
Stipend 

Placer County Economic Development Board 
Meetings at Various Businesses in Placer Co. 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

3:00 pm  

3rd Thursday 

Jan/April/June/Sept 

Submit to City None 

Weimar, Applegate, Colfax/Municipal 
Advisory Council (WAC/MAC) 
City of Colfax, Council Chambers 

Will Stockwin 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

6:00 pm  

3rd Wednesday of Month 

Submit to City None 

Sierra Economic Development Corporation 
(SEDCorp) 

560 Wall Street, Suite F, Auburn, CA 95603 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

1:00 pm  

1st Wednesday EOM starting 

February 

Submit to Board None 

Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
(SACOG) 

1415 L. St. Sacramento, CA 95814 

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Kim Douglass 

9:30 am  

3rd Thursday of Month 

Submit to Board $100 

Grants Oversight Committee 
(approves change orders over $5,000) 

Tom Parnham 

Kim Douglass 

As Needed Submit to City  

Placer County Air Pollution Control District 
BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA  

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

 2:30 pm  

2nd Thursday of even #’d 

months 

Submit to Board $100 

Placer Mosquito & Vector Control District 
2021 Opportunity Dr. Roseville, CA 95678 

Tom Parnham 

No Alternate for this Board  

4:30 pm  

3rd Monday of Month 

Submit to City $100 

Project Go 
801 Vernon St, Roseville 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

5:30 pm 

Third Thursday 

 

Submit to Committee None 

Placer County Transportation Planning Agency 
(PCTPA) 

BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA  

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

9:00 am  

4th Wednesday of Month 

Submit to Committee $100 

Local Agency Formation Commission 
BOS Chambers 

175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA 95603 

Kim Douglass  

Alternate:  Vacant 

4:00 pm  

2nd Wednesday of Month 

Submit to City $100 

ITEM 4C
1 of 2



2014 Committee Assignment List 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Committee Councilmember 
Community Member 

Meeting Date and 

Time 

Mileage 

Reimbursement 

Stipend 

Bianchini Advisory Board/ 
Sierra Vista Liaison 

 

Kim Douglass 

Tony Hesch 

Unknown Submit to City No 

Solid Waste Task Force 
Auburn Veterans Hall 100 East Street Auburn, CA  

95603   
Meeting Locations may vary 

Wes Heathcock 9:00am  

1st Thursday Feb, May, 

August, Nov 

Submit to City No 

Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council 
City of Colfax 

Council Chambers 

Will Stockwin 

Alternate: Tom Parnham 

6:00pm  

4th  Thursday of each month 

Submit to City No 

Land Use Committee  As needed Submit to City No 

Placer County Selection Committee Mayor Once Per Year Submit to City No 

Risk Assessment Committee Steve Harvey 

Tom Parnham 

As needed  

(2X Per Year Expected) 

Submit to City No 

General Plan/Circulation Element Update 
Committee 

Steve Harvey 

Tony Hesch 

As Needed Submit to City No 

ITEM 4C
2 of 2



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE OCTOBER 28, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: October 21, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax – Quarterly Investment Report 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report: September 30, 2015. 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council.  Such report shall include at least the following 
information: 

 Types of Investments; 

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

 Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

 Rate of interest 

 Average weighted yield of all investments 

 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and 

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial obligations. 
 

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and 
$150,000 in the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account.  This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges.  City funds in excess of 
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
on a weekly basis.  The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target 
balance by the Bank due to the timing of city checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 4D
1 of 5



2 

 

 

We have begun preliminary analysis of investment opportunities outside the corporate checking and LAIF 
accounts.  Our investment policy dictates that City should have liquid short term securities to meet six 
month’s financial obligations. Preliminary rate analysis for Certificate of Deposits (CD) with US Bank 
requires a minimum balance of $1,000,000 (uncollateralized) are reflected below:  
 

 
 

Due to fluctuations in fund balances and the time requirement for interest earnings that exceed our current 
investment earnings rate, staff does not recommend CD Investments at this time. Staff will continue to 
monitor balances and investment opportunities. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at September 30, 2015 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by 
Resolution 29-2014, 

 The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of .32%, 

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period 
October 01, 2015 through March 31, 2016. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 09/30/15) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

ITEM 4D
2 of 5



ITEM 4D
3 of 5



ITEM 4D
4 of 5



ITEM 4D
5 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE OCTOBER 28, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: October 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Request for Approval of Two Welcome to Colfax Signs 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $2,500 - $5,000 FROM FUND:  100 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion to approve design, purchase and installation of  Welcome 

to Colfax signs for the two major entrances to town.  
 

BACKGROUND:   

One of Colfax’s greatest assets is its historic and architecturally interesting, small-town 

character.  Residents, businesses, City Council, the Chamber of Commerce and staff have 

been working diligently to attract visitors and economic activity to town.  The lack of 

clear and attractive signage has been identified as a significant impediment to bringing 

visitors and potential businesses to Colfax.  The City does have several Historic Colfax 

signs visible along Interstate 80, but a frequently heard comment is that visitors become 

confused that the center of Colfax is the commercial strip along the freeway, and there 

are not enough indicators to where downtown or the Historic District is located.  The 

Colfax October 2009 Historic District Master Plan expresses the challenge well – “The 

Historic Core remains a hidden jewel that is likely to be discovered only by those whose 

sense of curiosity takes them away from the highway business corridor.”   

The City, Chamber and volunteer groups have made progress towards improving way-

finding signs around town.  However, Colfax is lacking a Welcome to Colfax sign, which 

communities traditionally use to delineate entrances to town.  A signature welcome sign 

can also help create a sense of place when it identifies unique features of a community. 

ITEM 7A
1 of 5



 

A local, experienced sign company, “Back to the Drawing Board”, has offered to design 

and construct welcome signs for Colfax, essentially at cost.  The attached design reflects 

some of Colfax’s most important attributes – its historic downtown buildings, the 

railroad, and even Colfax’s past pear orchards.  The eye-catching design would become 

Colfax’s artwork and could be used for other City marketing such as posters, guides, 

murals and events. 

ANALYSIS: 

The proposed design attached will provide a vibrant and interesting Welcome to Colfax 

sign to attract visitors and assist in encouraging economic development.  The sign 

company has experience in professional signage to attract business, and their work has 

been featured in community guidebooks.  The sign is appropriately scaled to be readable 

at vehicle speeds along the proposed Highway 174 corridor and is approximately 4 feet 

by 8 feet in size.  The recommended location on Highway 174 is shown in the attached 

street view photo.  The sign will be 3-dimensional, created with high durability exterior 

paint and finished with multiple coats of ultraviolet resistant sealer.  Staff is 

recommending to contract for two signs, with the second sign placed in the S. Auburn 

Street corridor, near the beginning of the Historic District, to draw visitors downtown.  

Having two custom signs made at the same time also provides for identical signs at the 

two main entrances to town which reinforces the sense of place.   

The contract cost for the art work, design and fabrication is $2,500 per sign. Staff will 

provide the installation with anticipated minimal material costs.  A Caltrans 

encroachment is required for installation in Highway 174 right-of-way, and the second 

sign proposed is expected to be within City right-of-way along S. Auburn Street.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the design, purchase and installation of 

Welcome to Colfax signs for the two major entrances to town. 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Sign design proposed 

2. Street view photo showing the approximate location along Highway 174 coming from Grass Valley 

3. Street view photo showing a potential location along S. Auburn Street    

 

  

ITEM 7A
2 of 5



ITEM 7A
3 of 5



ITEM 7A
4 of 5

LorraineCassidy
Rectangle



ITEM 7A
5 of 5

LorraineCassidy
Rectangle


	00A 151028 Agenda
	03B Recent Air Quality Trends in Colfax
	04A 151014 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary Report September
	2016-03 Staff Report Cash Summary Sep 2015
	151028 Cash Summary Data

	04C 151028 Proposed Committee Assignments
	04D Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report Sept 2015
	151028 Investment Report Data

	07A Welcome Sign
	2015-10-28 Historic Colfax signs
	Sign Artwork and Location




